S AL

IN THE INCOME TAX APPELLATE TRIBUNAL,

DELHI BENCH ‘B’, NEW DELHI

- BEFORE SHRI P.N. PARASHAR AND SHRI RAJENDRA SINGH

ITA No. 250/1)611’2005
Block Assessment Period : 1.4.1990 t0 3.8 2000

M/s. SMC Share Brokers Limited, . vs.  DCIT, Central Circle 3,

17, Netaji Subhash Marg, : New Deﬂ:u
New Delhi.
(APPELLANT) E (RESPONDENT)

APPELLANT BY : Shri Ved Jain and Ms. Rano. Jain
RESPONDENT BY : Smt. Sangeeta Gupta _:

ORDER

PER P.N. PARASHAR, JUDICIAL MEMBER :

This appeal has been filed by the assessee against the order of the Id.

CIT (Appeals) dated 31.3.2005,

2. Shkri Ved Jain, Id. FCA and Ms. Rano Jain, C.A. appeared for the:

assessee whereas Smt. Sangeeta Gupta, Id. CIT DR represented the revenue

3. The assessee has takep as inany as seven grounds in tbis appeal to -

challenge the order of the Id. CIT (A) dated 31.3.2005 fo_x"ihé bloclk period |
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Aggarwal found that Mr. Manoj Aggarwal was doing the business of

providing book entries to various parties and one of such beneficiary of
accommodation of entries given by Mr. Manoj Aggarwal was the assessee,
namely, M/s. SMC Share Brokers Limited. This conclusion was also based
on the documents found and seized during the course of sgarch under section
132 (1) of Income-tax Act from the premises of Mr. Manoj Aggarwal
situated at 5A/12, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, New Delhi. The pages 83 to 85
of Annexure A-3 contained details of accounts of Mis. -’Friends Portfolio Pﬁ-
Limited with M/s. SMC Share Brokers Limited 1. the assessee and as per
.these décuments, profit of Rs.3,26, 48 898.84 wés shown to have been |
earned by M/s. Fnends Portfolio PW Lmnted on various transactions of :
shares. A brokerage incentive amounting to Rs.6,76,067/- was also found to
" have been credited to the account of M/s Friends Portfolio Pvt. Limited.
Besides, a diary was also seized which was marked as Annexure A-18 and
as pér this diary, two cheques were received by M/s. Friends Portfolio Pvt.
Limited. In the diary, there was an'enﬁy regarding payment of cash of
Rs.99 lacs in the name of M/s. SMC Share Brokers Limited. The Assessing
Officer recorded statement- of Mr. Manoj Aggarwal during the course of
assessment proceedings in his case on vgnlous occasions: He also emed

M. Neeraj Gupta who was said to be mtermediatary involved in the
K"“"‘_;’“f.‘_..u n‘*‘%

transactions. The assessment in the case of M/s. Friends Portf@ﬁ@ CP;LEQ g%\
0 BN

it -é

: 7,
was made on 29.8 2003 The Assessing Officer issued a shoxg{ ’Ea:ase notlce';:rﬂ&_ * ‘
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to the present assessee under section 158BD read with section 158 BC on
26.11.2002-and required the assessee to file return for the block period
covering assessment years 1991-92 to 2001-2002. Return was required to be
filed within 15 days from the service of notice. The assessee filed return in

Form No.2B on 20.12.2002.

43  The Assessing Officer, during the course of assessment proceedings,
further recorded statement of Mr. Manoj Aggarwal and issued a show cause

notice on 17.11.2004. Against this notice, the assessee filed a detailed reply

dated 25.11.2004, After considering the material collected by the Assessing

. Officer and the reply of the assessee, the Assessing d_ﬁiccr held as under : -

“14. In the light of the above discussions, it is crystal clear
that the transactions allegedly conducted by M/s. Friends
Portfolio Pvt. Limited were actually the transactions conducted
by the assessee company on its own frading account and the
profit on this transactions had actually been earned by the
assessce company. In order to reduce its profit on trading of
shares, the assessee company claimed that these transactions ‘
were undertaken by it as a broker on behalf of M/s. Friends
Portfolio Pvt. Limited.  On account of these bogus
accommodation book entries, the assessee has reduced its profit
on trading in shares by Rs.3,26,48,898.84. in financia] year
1999-2000 relevant for the A.Y. 2000-2001.  Further, the
assessee has transferred brokerage income of Rs.6,76,067/- by
showing bogus accommodation entries of payment of
Brokerage incentive to M/s. Friends Portfolio Pyt Limited in
the financial year 1999-2000 relevant for the A.Y. 2000-2001.
Therefore, these amounts constitute the undisclosed income of
the assessee during the Block Period.”

e






He thus completed the assessment on 29.11.2004 by working out the

undisclosed income of Rs.3,33,24,965.84 as under :

1. Undisclosed income from suppression of - :
Profit by accommodation entries of share  Rs.3,26,48,898.84

Transactions (for the F.Y. 1999-2000)
(as discussed in para 14)

2. Undisclosed income from suppression of -
Profit by accommodation entries of Rs. 6,76,067.00
Payment of Brokerage Incentive

(for the F.Y. 1999-2000)
(as discussed in para 14)

__________

Total undisclosed mcome for the block period Rs.3.33.24.965.84

4.4 The additions made in the assessment order were challenged beiore

D the lld. CIT (A) by thza assessee. For doing 50,*x;arious legal grounds were E
also taken. The 1d. CIT (A) gave relief of Rs.6,76,067/- to the assessee by
deleting the addition made on accoﬁnt of brokerage paid by thé assessee {o

Mr. - Manoj; Aggarwal. However, he confirmed the addition of

j:;- ) Rs.3,26,48,898.84.
. .

4.5  The order of the 1d. CIT (A) has been challenged in this appeal.

5. In the setting of the above factual background, we-proceed to

adjudicate various grounds taken in this appeal.

BT et



o

()

Partd



. . O . oh)
7 . .
6. Ground No.1 of appeal is general in nature and dessnot require any

specific adjudication.

7. Ground Nos:2 (i), 2 (ii) and 2 (iv) challenge the validity of notice

issued under section 158BC read with section 158BD.

8. .. Shri Ved Jain, 1d. FCA while supporting the grounds took various

pleas, whlch are as under :

8.1  That the Assessing Officer did not record any satisfaction as required

under section 158BD durmg the course of assessment proceedmgs of M/s.

Fnends Portfoho Pvt. Llrmted or Mr. ManOJ Aggarwal or before completlon

of these assessment orders.

8.2  That on the basis of contents of éaﬁsfacﬁcn note dated 26.11.2002, the

Assessing Officer was not justified in issuing notice under section 158BC

read wiﬂ1 section 158BD.

- 8.3  That the assessment made on the basis of satisfactlon note cannot be

legally justlﬁed

e
L7






84  That the notice issued under section 158BC/158BD required the

- assessee to file return within 15 days, which is a period less than the period

prescribed. under the statue. Therefore, this notice is bad in the eyes of law

and all the proceedings done in consequence thereof, are null and void.

8.5 That the notice issued under section 158BC/158BD is not legally
maintainable as the same was issued much after the compietion of the

assessment order in the case of M/s. Friends Portfolio Pvt. Limited and Mr,

Manoj Aggarwal._

9 In support of these pleas, the Id. counsel placed reliance on various
degisions including the following , L
@ CITvs Ekbal and Co. 13 TIR 154;
(i1)  Prabhat Sawmill Tlmber Merchant-vs, ITO 51 ITD 549
(1ii) Mahesh Kumar Batra vs. JCIT 95 TTT 451,
(iv)  Chitra Devi vs. ACIT 77 TTJ 640;
(v) - Amity Hotéls vs. CIT 272 ITR 75,
(vi) Rushil vs. Harprakash 251 ITR 608;

(vil) Adityanar Educational & Research Institute Vvs. State of Tamﬂ
Nadu 224 TTR 233; and -

(vii) Dayal Industries vs. CCT 100 STC 215, -
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10.  Ld. CIT Departmental Representative, on the other hand, strongly
opposed these arguments and placed reliance on the orders of the Asséssing

Officer and that of the 1d. CIT (A).

1.  We have carefully considered the facts and circumstancés of ‘t‘m's
matter and the rival submissions. The legal issues relating to validity of
notice issued under section 158BD and validity of tﬁe assessment
pfoceedings were also raised before the 1d. CIT (A). Before him, re_lia.nce
------ was placed on behalf of the assessee on the decisions reported in 272 ITR _
75, 170 ITR 592, 260 ITR 80, 121 Taxman 272, 97 ITR 696, 19 TTJ 546, 79

TTJ 1, (199?) 3 SCC 410, 141 Taxman 92, 79 TTJ 228 and 6% ITT 66.
;V“Besides -th;se decisions,‘_}eliancc lwz;s also placed _fon the decision. of |

Prarthana Construction (P) Ltd. vs. DCIT (2001) 70 TTJ (Ahd) 122,

Chiranji Lal Steel & Rolling Mills vs. CIT 81 ITR 222 (Punj.) and ACIT vs.

Ms. Lata Mangeshkar 97 ITR 696 (Bom.). The 1d. CIT (A) held that the

\) satisfaction note contained valid reasons for 't_he. ipifiation of block
 assessment proceedings agajr;st tﬁe assessee and, therefore, it cannot be said

| that there was no proper satisfaction note. Regarding period of limitation, he

was of the view that if the Assessing QfﬁCEI: is satisfied that there was

undisclosed iucome,- he can im'tiéte proceedings under sectic;n 1588D at any

stage and even afier the completion of the block assessment in the case of

persons searched. According to him, in the case of the assessee, proceedings
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were initiated on 26.11.2002 after about three months from the completion
of the assessment proceedings in the case of Mr. Manoj Aggarwal and
limitation for completion of the assessment started from that date in the case

of the assessee and thus the assessment order passed on 29.11.2004 was

within the period of limitation prescribed.

111 So far as the plea relating to filing of return within 15 days from the

date of notice is concerned, he held that the plea was only technical and

cannot be accepted.

11_.2_:_ ‘Before us, the 1d. couns_el:h:as challenged these ﬁndmgs According to

him, during the course of search in the case of any person searched, if some

‘undisclosed income or material disclosing undisclosed income is found and

seized then the Assessing Officer, dealing with the casc of such searched | |
person, is required to recc;rd a satisfaction to initiate proceedings under
section 158BD and to handover the incriminating ,.mateﬁal pcrtaining to such
other person to the Assessing Officer of that person. He pointed out that in

this case, no asset or document of the assessee relating to its L_mdisclosed -k
income was found during the course of search from the premises of Mr.
Manoj Aggarwal. Regarding the alleged satisfaction note dated 26.11 :2002,

his contention was that this satisfaction note is mainly based..on. the "

- statement of Mr. Manoj Aggarwal dated 19.6.2002 which cannot be treated
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to be material disclosing undisclosed income of the assessee. It wag also
pointed out by him that although as per the assessment order, the books of
account of the persons searched i.e. Mr. Manoj Aggarwal and M/s. Friends
Pdrtfoli_o Pvt. Limited and the alleged diary containing entries regarding
cheques and cash have been made the basis for making the additions of
undisclosed income in the case of the assessee in the assessment order

passed under séction 158BC/158BD but the satisfaction note does not make

any reference to these documents. According to him, therefore, there is no

‘nexus between the satisfaction note and the assessment made. The Id.

Counsel also pointed out that even vide letter dated 5.11.2004, the Assessing

Officer infprnied the assessee as under
“Regarding the copy of seized material, the same shall be

provided to you when it will be used against you in any

proceedings of Income Tax Act.” '

On the basis of the above letter, his emphatic submission was that the seized -

material was not considered and used by the Assessing Officer for recording

his satisfaction and for issuing notice under section 158BD against the

assessee and, therefore, the assessment order passed against assessee under

section 158BD, on the basis of such satisfaction note cannot be justified. In

support of his contention on this 1ssue, he placed reliance on the decision of

Hon'ble Dethi High Court in the case of Amity Hotels 192 CTR 607 (supra).
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12, Another contention strongly canvassed by the Id. counsel was that the
satisfaction mecessary for proceedings under section 158BD should be

recorded as soon as the material pertaining to the person other than the

person searched came to the notice of the Assessing Officer of the searched

_ person or at the most during the course of assessment proceedings of that _

person and the relevant material relating to such ‘other person’ should be
handed over to the Assessing Officer of that person. In support of this
submission, he ﬁade reference to the provi_sioné of section 132, 158BC and
158BD. In support of this submission, he placed reliance on the decision of
Hon'ble Gujarat High Couwrt in the case of Khandubhai Vasanji Desai & Ors.

Vs, DCIT236I'IR73 (Guj) ‘ oL , :

- 1d. Déparﬁnental Representative, on the other hand, submitted that
there is no requirement under law for recording of satisfaction before the
conclusion of the assessment proceedings in the case of persons searched
under section 132 of Income-tax Act and satisfaction can be recorded even
afier passing of the assessment order under section 158BC in the case of

person searched.
e e

14, We have carefully considered the legal pleas raised in relation to the -

recording of satisfaction. The undisputed facts in this case are as follows :






14.1 The block assessment orders m the case of Shrj Manoj Aggarwal and

M/s. Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd. were completed on 29.8.2002.

142 The notice under section 158BD was issued to the assessee company |

on 26.11.2002.

14.3  As per the Departmental Representative, the satisfaction for mitiating
proceedings under section 158BD was i‘ecorded by the Assessing Officer
making assessment in the case of Shri Manoj Aggarwal and M/s. Friends

Portfolio (P) Ltd on 29.8.2002 also i.e. on the date of passing assessment

«_ order dated 29.8.2002 itself. However the Id. counsel for the assessee has

il.

sertously challenged ‘th;e genuineness and thé authentlclty of ﬂns note.
According to him, this note is antedated. He tried to substantiate his
argument by demonstrating that if the satisfaction note was rccorded on
29.8.2002 then there would have been no necessﬂy to further record the
satisfaction again on 26.11.2002. He also pointed out that from the contents
and language of the alleged satisfaction note dated 29 8. 2002, it is evident

that this note is subsequeutly prepared. He submltted that if the satisfaction

was recorded on 29.8. 2002 the not:ce should also have been 1sqgg@ on that

date 1tbelf or just thereafter.
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14.4 The 1d. Departmental Representative, on the other hand, maintained

that the Assessing Officer had made this note on 29.8 2002,

15, We have carefully considered the entire material on record and the
rival submissions. With this note, a list of beneficiaries has been appended.

The name of assessee appears at Item No.69, which is as under -

69 | SMC 17, Netaji Subbash | Friends [30000000 | The assessee  has
Sharebrokers | Marg, Portiolio taken bogus
Lid. Daryaganj, (P) Ltd. accommodation

' New Delhi-02. entry through M/s.

Friends Portfolio (P)
Lid  and  hence
satisfaction note in
this regard has been
recorded in the case
of this company and
proposal - Yor
centralization of this
case in this circle has
been approved for

taking up
proceedings w/s 158

BD,

The last sentence in the above note indicates fhat the proposal for
centralization of this case in this circle has been approved for taking up
proceedings under sectioﬁ 158BD. The Id. counsel pointed out-before us
that no such approval was taken before 29.8.2002. Acﬁording to him, the
_proposal is dated 19.9.2002 ie. after the date of the office note. The office
note cannot, thefefore, mention any event, which has éccuned later on ie.
after 29.8.2002. The fact that the proposal itself is dated 19.9.2002 could

- not be controveried by the 1d. Departmental Rc;ﬁresentative.
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16.  On going through the alleged office note available on pages 202 to

226, it is found that the office note has been allegedly signed on 29 8 2002

th_at is the date on which the assessment order in the case of Mys, Friends

centralization of the case in the circle in which the cases of searched persons
fell, as refezred to above, and also in view of the circumstances relating to

thrs 1ssue, we find force in the subrmssrons of the Id. counsel for the assessee

- made before us and conclude that no satrsfactron note was prepared on

-

29.8.2002 and this note has been prepared -even after 26.11.2002. Our -

reasons for holding so are as under -

(1) Had the satisfaction been recorded on 29.8.2002, there would
have ‘been no necessity to Tecord another satisfaction op
26. 11 2002. The note refers to the satlsfactlon recorded in the

case of this company” which reference is to the satisfaction

subsequent to satisfactton note dated 26.11 2002
(i)  Had the satisfaction note been recorded on 29 8. 20()2 then the
record pertaining to the other person not searched should have

been transferred to the Assessmg Ofﬁcer of the present assessee
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who was a different officer at that time then the officer of the

searched person.

The alleged satisfaction makes mention of the proposzil and
approval regarding centralization of the case. This proposal is
dated 19.11.2002 and 1s subsequent to Vthe alleged note which
fact proves the contention of the 1d. counsel for the assessee that
the notice is antedated.

There is a detailed note by the Assessing Officer, a copy of
which has been filed at page 33 of the paper book. The

concluding observations of the Assessing Officer in this note

*

are as under : -

“ In view of the facts mentioned above and the
block assessments order of Sh, Manoj Aggarwal
and M/s. Friends Portfolio P. Ltd.,, undisclosed
income has arisen in the hands of M/s. SMC Share
Brokers Ltd. which has been found during the
curse of search & seizure operations in the case of

- Sh. Manoj Aggarwal and his associate concerns.
Thus, proceedings v/s 158BD are applicable in this
case.” '

- The date below the signatures of the Assessiﬁg Officer is not

legible in this copy.  Therefore, thf/]\Ef: DEFH P

3"9{ ».— cf-"?

£

- : 5
" Representative was asked during the cqtg 3
k'

case to verify the date of this note. O

fact has been recorded by the Bench on page 33 itself.






e

16

17 In view of the above, it is clear that on or before 29.8.2002, {he
Assessing Officer of M/s. Friends Portfolio (P.) Limited and that of Shrj

Manoj Aggarwal did not record any satisfaction. The note dated 29.8.2002

18, therefore, not to be taken for recording satisfaction required under section

158BC/158RBD.

‘18. If we exclude the allleged note dated 29.8.2002 as recording the

required satisfaction then there remains. the satisfaction note dated

26 11.2002. The objection of the Id. counsel for the assessee for challenging

the legal Vahdlty of this note 1s that the Assessmg Oﬁcer malang '

%, -

assessment in the case of the searched person had _]unsdlctmn to record

sattsfactmn only up to the date of passing assessment order in the case of
searched person under section 158BC and after passing the assessment

order, he became ﬁmctus officio and did not retain any seizen or _]UIISCthIOD

- over the matter and thus he is not authorized or empowered to record

satisfaction when he was not seized of the matter. The argnment of the 1d.
counsel for the assessee was that for the purposes of C‘hapter XTIV, the

Assessmg Officer is specmlly empowered under a special procedure for

h exercising the power of the assessment. This power being for specified

purposes can be exercised only during the period till the assessment order is

made. It was thus submitted by him that the satisfaction required for

52
g
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proceéding under section 158BD cannot be recorded by the Assessing
Officer after completing the assessment in the case of searched person and
as in the 1nstant case, the saﬁsfactionlnoté dated 26.11.2002 has been made
after more than three months of the completion of the assessment under
section 158BC of the Act, the proceeding initiated on the basis of this
saﬁsfaction note cannot be legally justified. In support of this submission,

the Id. Counsel for the assessee placed heavy reliance on the decision of

 Hon'ble Gujarat High Court in the case of Rushil vs. Harprakash 251 ITR

608 (Guy.).

19, The 1d. Departmental Representative, on the other hand, submitted

‘that there is no limit prescribed for recording the-ﬂ satisfaction and the

Assessing Officer is fully competent to record satisfaction even after

completing the assessment in the case of searched person.

20.  We have carefully considered the entire material and the .n'val
submissions. "fhe Assessing Officer of the seérched person can rccordr
satisfaction regarding the undisclosed income of the other person at any
stage during the assessment proceedings under section 158BC or even

thereafter but such satisfaction has to be recorded in wiiting®

prescribed is for completing the assessment under secnoniSSBD,whlch
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two years from the end of the month in which the notice under section

I58BD has been issued in the cases where search is mitiated after | 1.1997

20.1 The next plea of the assessee 1s that the satisfaction note makes no
reference to the seized material and thus the proceedings under section
158BD judged from the satisfaction note cannot be justified. We do not find

force in this submission also. The satisfaction note dated 26.11.2002,

. referred to above, is a detailed one. We have also reproduced the c.ouéludiﬁg

observations of the Assessing Officer, which mdicate that he applied his

mind before recording the saﬁsfaction. It may be pointed out that the

satlsfacnon note is not reqmred to contain each and every. n:unute detail and

-

to refer to each and every material relevant for making assessment under
section ISSBD Thus, the argnment that since, in the satisfaction note, there’

15 no reference to seized material, the assessment made on the basis of such

satisfaction note cannot be legally sustained, is not acceptable.

21. The next legal objection of the assessee against the validity of the

- assessment order is that the notice for filing return under section

158BD/158BC did not allow 15 clears days for ﬁimg the retum and,

| therefore, on this ground, the notice is invalid. On going through the record,

1t is found that the notice was given on 26.11.2002 (o the assessee for filing

the return within 15 days of the service of the notice. The assessee raised
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objections aga.inst this.notice vide letter dated 10.12.2002. The return was
filed in protest by the assessee on 20.12.2002. Thus, it is cl,lear that assessee
got more than 15 days time to file the return and as the assessee was allowed
to file return evén after the expiry of 15 dayé time, it canndt be said tha% the
assessee did nof, in fact, get a period of less than 15 days. As held in the
case of Mahesh Kumar Batra vs. JCIT 95 TTJ 451 (Amritsar), even if there
is technical defect or irregularity in the notice, the same is curable. Thus,
this argument too 1s not tenable. The assessee has placed reliance on the
decision of Delhi Bench of ITAT in the case of Neera Aggarwal vs. DCIT
dated 9.2.2005 bﬁt in view of the decision of Speéial Bench in the case of
Mahesh Kumar Batra vs. ICIT (supra) the decision of Delhi Bench of ITAT

does not retain binding authorlty

22. On the basis of our discussion and observations made above, we do

not find any force in the legal pleas raised on behalf of the assessee 10

- ground nos.2 (i), 2 (ii) and 2(iv).

23, Ground nos. 2(iii) and 2 (v) also challenge the validity of the
assessment proccedings. In our considered oplmon the.. assessment_
proceedings in the case of the present assessec cannot be held to be mvahd "
on the technical grounds raised by the assessee and tﬁe same ar_e{-'fé.jected".u_ :

ceordingly.
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24, Ground No.3 1s as under :

“On the facts and circumstances of the case, the learned CIT
(A) has erred, both on facts and in law, in rejecting the
contention of the appellant that the assessment has been
concluded in violation of the principles of natural justice and
the material gathered at the back of the appellant has been used
without giving Opportunity to the appellant to rebut the same.”

25. The contention of the 1d. counsel for the assessee was that the main

- basis for making the addition in the case of the present assessee is the

statement of Shn Manoj Aggarwal, which was recorded at the back of the
assessee and despite repeated requests, the assessee was not allowed
Opportunity to cross examine him. I this regard, the 1d. COIHISGIV made
reference to the letter dated 19.11.2004 and 25.11.2004 which are avaJlabIe
at'page 36 and” 72 of the paper book. Accordmg to him, . ﬂns plea was taken

even before the 1d. CIT (A) but he did not consider it proper to offer any

further opportunity of giving right to ¢ross-examination of Shri Manoj -

‘Aggarwal to the assessee. In support of his submlsszon, the 1d. counsel

placed reliance on the following decisions :

() MK. Thomas vs. State of Kerala 40 STC 278;
() State of Kerala vs. Shaduli 39 STC 478; and

(1i) Vasanji Ghela and Co. vs. Commissioner of Sales tax (Bombay .

40 STC 544

He also placed reliance on the following decisions -
(1 CIT vs. Eastern Commercial Enterprises 210 IR 103 (Cal);
(i) Gargidin Jwalaprasad vs. CIT 96 ITR 97 (AlL); and
(iif)  Paharchand and Sons v, State of Puujab 30 STC 211
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26.  The Id. Departmental Representative, on the other hand, supported the
observations of the Assessing Officer and that of the 1d. CIT (A) and

submitted that the assessment order cannot be vitiated only on account of

this fact.

27.  We have carefully. considered the entire material and the rival
submissions. -The relevant facts relating to this aspect of the matter are as

under :

- N oA

27.1. The search in the case of Shri Manoj Aggarwal Drrector of M/s.

Frrends Portfolio ®) Ltd. was conducted on 3.8.2000. Nerther the assessee |
nor the 1d. Departmcntal Representatrve has prowded us w1t11 the copy of
any statement of Shrr Man0} Aggarwal recorded at the time .of search. .

Agcording to the Id. counsel for the assessee, the statement of Shri Manoj

Aggarwal was not recorded on the date of search. The ﬁrst version of Shrt_ o B

Mam} Aggarwal regarding the alleged bogus entries 1s m hrs letter dated ’

22, 8 2000 A copy of this letter is avallable at page 101 of the paper book
We consrder it proper to reproduce the contents of this letter Whlch are as

under :



“Sub : Proceedings under section 132 —

Dear Sir,

This has reference to the proceedings of Section 132 of
L5T. Act, 1961, conducted at me and also to the discussion held
with you which has inspired me to come clean before the
Revenue Authorities. As you are aware, sir, all of my records -
bave  been seized during the search proceedings, the
photocopies of which is yet to be obtained.

However, as informed earlier, it is not possible for me to
adduce evidence in support of each tramsactions to your
satisfaction. In view of this and to -buy peace I have
thoughtfully cousidered the transactions entered into by me and
have come to the conclusion that out of the total transactions
under investigation, the transactions amounting to Rs.100 crore
approx. have been done by me on commission basis at various
rates of commission ranging from 0.020% to 0.10% which
means that I have given book entrics against the cash/cheque
receipt of approximately one hundred crores from various * .
parties. Details/addresses of which am ready to.provide in +

* case I receive photo copies of all the documents seized from
- various premises. I hope you will suitably deal with the
above.” ‘

-.?Hi_s' st‘_cifenient was firstly recorded on 11.9.2000 tﬁé_:reafter;(m 14.12.2000,
The statement of Shri Manoj Aggarwal Wa.s also recorded on 19.6.2002. A

copy of this statement is available at pages 112 to 115. Thus, the statement

of Shri Manoj Aggarwal was recorded on'three cﬁﬁ'erent dates during the

course of assessment proceedings in the case of M/s. Friends Portfolio (P)

Limited. During the assessment proceedings of these persons, the present
assessee was never examined nor sumoned to confront or cross-examine

Shri Manoj Aggarwal.




- 27.2 During assessment proceedings of the present assessee, the Assessing

Officer issued notice dated 3.2.2003. The assessee filed detailed reply on
159.2004 and 29.9.2004. The statement of Shri Manoj Aggarwal was
further recorded duﬁng the clourse of assessment proceedings of the present
assessee on 9-11.2004 and thereafier a show cause notice dated 17.11.2004
was issued. The éssessee filed reply to this show cause.notice on 25.11.2004
and the assessment orcier was made Just after four days i.e. on 29.11.2004,
During the assessment proceedings of the present assessee al_so, the present

assessee was never called to cross examine Shri Manoj Aggarwal,

27.3 Thus, on going‘through the copies of the, statements of, Shri Manojs °
Aggarwal, as referred to above, it is found that all the stateﬂlenxs were

recorded behind the back of the assessee aﬁd the assessee was riot afforded

any opportumty to cross examine him. In the letter dated 10.12.2002, the

-assessee made a request for providing him the phOtOCOplyS of the matenal

se:zed Vide letter dated 20.12. 2002 also, the assessee made a request to

- furnish copies of the seized material found during the course of search. Vide -

letter dated 10.11.2004, the assessee sought 10 days time to fmmsh .the

- details required by the department. In the letter dated 19:11.2004 in para 5,

it is mentioned by the assessee that cdpies of certain staterents recorded by

Shri Mano; Aggarwal were furnished by letter dated 17.11.2004. 1t was

e

requested that the assessce should be given suitable time for subxmssmn of
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reply against the letter dated 17.11.2004. In the letter dated 19.11.2004,

following request was also made :
“We would also like to CToss examine Mr. Manoj Aggarwal &
Mr. Neeraj Gupta for the same. You are requested to please Ilet

us know the date and time when both the parties shall be
available for cross examination.”

273 However, no' opportunity to cross examine Shri Manoj Aggarwal and -

Shri Neeraj Gupta was afforded. The assessee addressed a letter dated

25.11.2004 in which also a reference was made to the letter dated 22.8.2202 ( ';J
of Shri Manoj Aggarwal written to - the Director of Income-tax -
(Investigation), statement of Shri Manoj Aggarwal dated 11.9.2000,
statement of Shri Manoj Agg‘aiwal dated 14.12.2000 and that dated 9.1.2001 |
) a,pd 19.6.2002, - The ass,eSse'eE also pointed'out that éveiﬁﬁ the signaturésf. of
Shri Manoj Ag'garwal differ ‘on Vaﬁdus" .documents and | papers. and

- St_afements‘. The:di_screpancie_s' pbiﬁtéd out by the asSésseé ate as under : o

Signatures of Mr. | Your kind attention is invited to following |
Manoj Aggarwal | documents as supplied along with the notice
' dated 17.11.2004. from the perusal of such |
document it was scen that My Manoj
Aggarwal is in. the habit of signing -
differently. Even two signatures as made on .
same document/paper do not tally/resemble
cach other. The one and only possibility 10
follow this non-genuine practice being a mala
fide, deliberate atterpt to deny signatires and
responsibility of documents later on. In this
connection attention is drawn towards
followings )

Letter filed on

22.08.00 before DI
(inv)
Statement dated
11.09.2000

The name Manoj is
followed Agg....

The name Manoj is
followed Ag.. . e
instead of “Agg. . 7|




The signatures show
(‘Ag- . ke d

Statement dated | The signatures on page

14.12.2000 4 — 7 do not tally with
| each other.

Statement dated | All the pages have been

19.06.2002 signed in Hindi except

been signed in English.
Even the Hindi

signatures  appearing
differently on different

page no.2 which has

pages.
Statement  ‘dated | The signature on this
09.11.2004 statement do not tally

or even resemble with
any of the signatures in
earlier statements. The

differ from page to
page. '

signatures even tend to |

Other errors in
the statements of
Mr. Manoj

*| Aggarwal *

In this connection we respectfully invite your
kind attention to declaration made by Mr.
Manoj Aggarwal on_last page of following
e Statement dated 11.09.2000 ’
e Statement dated 14.12.2000

It has been categorically declared by Mr.
Manoj Aggarwal that the contents of the
statements wmtten in English have been

- conveycd to him in Hindi,

This declaration shows that Mr. Manoj
Aggarwal either could not understand the
contents as wiitten in English so in order to
understand the same they needed to -be
translated in Hindi and communicated to him.

|1t .may however be noted that such
declarations are aliogether missing in |-
.subsequent statements recorded on foliowing

dates : . .
< & Statement dated 19.01.2001
( in this statement even the mandatory

clause that the statement made without |- =

any pressure, coercion etc. is also
missing)

* Statement dated 19.06.2002

e Statement dated ¢9.11.2004

From the above facts read with facts as stated

T g 14
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vide pt. No.1-6 above, it is thus abundantly
clear that the statements are unreliable and
can not be used as an evidence to levy serious
charges against the assessee and that too in
absence of any comoborative cogent
documents in support of such charges found
during search. ‘

In the last, the assessee has further made the following submissions :

“In support of genuineness of transactions involved we take this .
opportunity to request you goodself to please examine yourself
the persons as mentioned vide letter filed on earlier dates along
with complete details with respect to name and address of such
persons”

Further, in para (i) at page 93, the follo’Wing pleas has been raised :

“1) The proceedings are being concluded without giving
. proper and sufficient oijportunity of being heard’_:to‘_&the assessee
*  and denyirig it its legitinate right to cross examine other parties -
(Mr. Manoj Aggarwal and Mr. Neeraj Gupta). :

The assessee has also asserted legal right by raising following pleas in the

said letter datcd 25.”11-2004 : | S

5. |1t is the duty of the * It may be noted that a
assessee to produce Mr.| . pumber of statements were
Manoj Aggarwal. 1 _recorded by the revenue
’ | . evthorities from Mr. Manoj.
Aggarwal. Ttis also a matter
-as _bom out be the
' proceedings  that  such
statements so 4recorded are
proposed to be used against
the assessee. ' At this stage
we would like to draw your
kind attention that last of
such statement was recorded
on 21.10.2004. Needlessly

to state that the statements to

be used against the assessee
are tecorded at the back of
the assessee wherein serious !




examine.
] . ) : o CIT v. Eastern Co;ilmercial
e . © s Enterptises (1994) 210 ITR

* In the last the assessee made following prayer : S
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allegation without any proof
have been levied and upon
presumption assumed by the
1d. A O. Thus in view of the
gravity of seriousness of
‘matter a cross examination
- being legitimate right of the
assessee was demanded. It
may be noted that under the
‘circumstances the onus is the
revenue 10 prove on the
contrary as well as to provide
the assessee an opportunity
to cross examine witness,
- which is being denied.

e In this connection we
respectfully place reliance
-on the following cases
supporting legitimate right of
the assessee to  cross

‘103 (Cal.), Gargi Din Jawala

Prasad vs. CIT (1974) 96

ITR 97 (All), Pahar Chand
& Sornis v. State of Punjab |
(1972) 30 STC 211 (Pun),
Banwarilal Sitaram v State of
. Orissa (1974) Tax LR 1960
S (Ori.), State of Kerala v. X.T.
T Shaduli - Yusuff (1977) 39
STC 478 (SC), Prarthna
Construction (P} Lid. v.
Dy.CIT (2001) 118 Taxman
112 (Ahd)(Mag).

“In view of the above, it is thus evident that any. ét]’;eg inferenc

Nugn b

¥ itifis

however, your goodself still forms an adverse v

requested that the factual and legal position as well as reliao

on the cases as reported above may please be rebutted and an
opportunity of being hcard may kindly be provided to us.”

e
other than genuineness of transactions incurred d{ﬁgﬁgnorfnal

course 1s incapable of being drawn. Howex}'é; 210 Veases .

i r{q-;\\:.‘" ,‘”ét
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274 It may be pointed out that the statement of Shri S.C. Agpgarwal was
recdrded on 212004 and tﬁe last statement of Shri Manoj Aggarwal wag
recorded on 9.11.2004 ie. after the stafement of Shri Aggmwal and,
therefore, it was ﬁeoessary fdr the Assessingr Officer to have 'aﬂowed

opportunity to the assessee to confront Shr Manoj Aggarwal.

28. In the assessment order, the Assessing Officer has made certain

observations regarding the pleas taken by the assessée and concluded that in

view of the decision of Hon'ble Kerala High Court in the case of MXK.

Thomas vs. State of Kerala 40 STC 278 and in view of the decision of
Hon'ble Supreme Court in the case of Shaduli 37 STC 478, the right of cross
éxaminaﬁon cannot be regarded as an invan'abie attribute of the

o réqu_irejments-of reasonable opportunity. -

29. The assessee has also challenged the assessment order before the id.
CIT (A) by taking a specific ground before the 1d. CIT (A), which is as

under -

“2. . That on the fact and circumstances of the case and in law
the Block assessment proceeding have been concluded without -
giving proper and sufficient opportunity of being heard to the
-appellant and ‘thus failed- to follow the principal of natural
Jjustice.” :

In support of this ground, the assessee also filed detailed written submission

before the 1d. CIT (A) and made detailed reference to the statements of Shri

-

NSAT
Lo
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Manoj Aggarwal  After making reference to the decisions of Hon'ble .
Supreme Court in the cases of R S, Nayak vs. AR. Antulay AIR 1986 SC-
2045 and Morarka Properties (P) Ltd. vs. Biharilal Morarka & Ors. AIR
1978 SC 300, the assessee submitted that, “documentary evidence of Vthe
essessee cannot be ignored merely on the basjs of a verbatim statement
made by a person and that too at the back of the assessee and without
giving an opportunity to rebut the same.” In this regard reference was

St : also made to the decision of the ITAT, Delhi reported m the case of 139

- Taxman 170

30. The . CIT (A) obtamed the remand repop‘ from- the * Assessing
Officer in which it was stated that the contentions ralsed by the assessee are
baseiess and deserves to-be rejected Regarding right of - cross—exammauon,
. reference was made to the assessment order again. The Id. CIT (A) obtamed_ |
comments of the assessee on the remand report n Whlch the assessee
repeated lus ob_]ectlons and placed rehance on the declsmn of Kzshanchand

Chellara.m Vs, CIT 125 ITR 713 (8C). The ld. CIT (A) has reproduced the

reply of the assessee and also the aeolsmns on which reliance has been

placed by it. However no fmdmg on ground no.2, as taken before hlm by":f‘-'*-

the assessee, was recorded The Id. CIT (A) has snnply re}ected Gro d
Nos.1, 2 and 9 Thus be too did mot consider jt proper ‘o aﬂow the

opporﬁm1ty to the assessee to cross examine Shri Mano; Aggayval Whlcl1_ﬁ_';.,;":-"':

© g
L
-n-.._._ i w2
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was the main basis for makmg addition agamst the assessee. In View of the
above facts it 15 clear that neither the Assessing Officer nor the 1d. CIT (A)
gave any opportunity to the assessee to cross examine Shri Manq] Aggamal

despite repeated requests made in this regard in Wntmg before them. -

31.  On going through the assessment order and the order of the Id. CIT
(A), it is found that the statement of Shrj Manoj Aggarwal has been mainty
used for making addition in the hands of the assessee. The Assessing
Officer has repeatedly made use of the statement of Shri Manoj Aggarwal in
the assessment order and, in fact, has based his conclusion on the basis of

this statement for holdmg that the transactlons camed out by the asseséee

were "110t gemune In this regard we may make reference to’ para 7.8 of the

assessment order, which is as under Lo

“ In view of the statements of Sh. Manoj Aggarwal as
specified in para 1 and the other points as specified in para 2, 3,
4 & 5 which clearly established that no genuine transactlons
have been conducted between ‘you and M/s. Friends Portfolio
Pvt. 1td., you are required to show cause why the claimed
u‘a.nsactions of Rs3.33 -24,96584 (Rs.3 26,48 89884 +
Rs.6,76,067/-) entered in to by you with Ms. Fnends Portfolio

- Pvt. Lid., should not be treated as bogus accommodation book
entries in ‘the form of alleged share profits and brokerage
incentives transferred to this concern which is non other than
cheques issued by you and obtamed the correspondmg amount
of cash as your undisclosed income.’
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In para 13.2, he has concluded as under :

“ On the basis of documents found during the course of
search of Sh. Manoj Aggarwal, his statements recorded during
post search proceedings & assessment proceedings and other
mvestigations carried out during assessment proceedings, it was
established that Sh. Manoj Aggarwal was engaged in the
business of providing bogus accommodation book entries. On
the basis of these evidences which have been discussed at
length in the assessment order of Sh. Manoj Aggarwal passed

- on 29.08.2002 it has been conclusively held that be was
engaged in the business of providing bogus accommodation
book entries on commission basis.” '

32. The assessee has challenged truthfulness, - correctuess .. and

creditworthiness of the statement of Shri Manoj Aggarwal and pointed out

-50 many inconsistencies, Inaccuracies and discrepancies, referred to above.

EY

On going through the material on record and in particular vérious

observations of AsSessing Officer in the assessment order, it 1s found that in
compliance to - the d_irecﬁons of the Assessing Officer, the assessee had
furnished details on 29,2004 The Assessing Officer has made reference to
these details in para 6 and 7 of the order. ‘The statement of Shri Manoj
Aggarwal was again recorded -during the assessment proceedings on
9.11.2004 ie. after the details and ddcumeﬁts were furnished by the
assessee. After recording this statement, the Assessing Ofﬁcer 1ssued a
show cz;ﬁse notice on 17.11.2004. The As;sessing Officer had- made
reference to this statement in the show cause notice as is qbﬁous on perusal
of pafa 7.7.2 of his order. The reply of the show cause notice was reqitired

by 19.11.2002. The assessec field letter dated 19112004 ang demanded
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- Commissioner of Income-tax were obtained. In these comments also,

Opportunity to cross-examine Shri Manoj Aggarwal. Further, vi&e letter

dated 19.] 1.2004, the assesses again demanded this Opportunity,

‘nothing is stated about the request of the assessee for Cross-examination of

Shri Manoj Aggarwal



- “10. During the course of hearing before the A.Q. the
" appellant company submitted all evidences in support of its
contention that the transactions entered into with Ms. Friends
Portfolio (P) Ltd., are that of the said company only and these
are not accommodation entries. - The A.O. was asked to give
dppoxtunily to cross examine Shri Manoj Aggarwal on whose
statement allegation is being made. No such opportunity was
given. Despite these facts, the A.Q. has disbelieved the
. explanation given by the appellant and has made an addition of
Rs.3,33,24,965/- as undisclosed income of the appeliant. The
appellant is challenging the issue of notice under section
158BD, framing of the block assessment as well as the above
addition, hence this appeal before your honour.”

The 1d. CIT (A) called comments of the Assessing Officer on the written

submissions of the assessee and the Assessing Officer submitted remand

report dated 3.3.2005. Against this remand Teport.also, the assessee made

 * following submissions :

“2: Cress Examination of Mr. Manoj Aggarwal
The A.O. in the remand report has submitted that he has
discussed the issue of Cross examination in the
- assessment order. He has endorsed his decision that
opportunity of cross exatnination need not be given in the
(\ - o - bresent case. As a protective measure, he has asked that
< - the opportunity of cross examination may be given at this

T - 'stage by your honour. In fhis comnection we are to
& P . submit that the A.O. is making a request against the

: ke - 'provisions of the law He cannot use the appellate

' . proceedings to supplement the deficiencies in the
~ assessment order, The assessment order has to stand on

its own and in case the same has been passed by taking

on tecord the evidences which legally /cannot be

considered, the only remedy shall be to. ignore such
- evidences. As explained in our written submission that a -

specific -tequest was made to the A.Q. to provide an

opportusity of cross examination of Mr. Manoj Aggarwal

but the AQ. passed a speaking order rejecting the

request. It is not the case where the A.O. wanted to allow



34

Cross examination but could not do so by reason beyond
his control. It is Just like a case where the A O. has not
collected any evidence and fmdmg himself cornereq in
the appellate proceedings, request the appellate
authorities to assume the role of A.O. and carry out the
mvestigation on his behalf. Thus, we strongly object to
this request of the A.O. Acceding to such request shall
also be against the law as a decision after Cross
cxamination shall be ip appellate proceedings as against
assessment proceedings. However, without prejudice to
the above, we are ready to have the cross examination of
Mr. ManOJ Aggarwal as and when it is arranged.”

However, even the Id. CIT (A) did not consider it proper to grant
0pportumty 10 cross-examination to the assessee.  Thus, the de_par!:mental
authorities, for reasons best known to them, avoided Cross-examination of

Shn Manoj Aggarwal though the assesses kept on demandmg the rlght of

' Cross exammatlon to meet out the alleganons Ieveﬂed against him.

35 On closer scrutmy of various documems and on cens1derat10n of the
' 611111‘8 relevant matena} this case presents peculiar facts and circumstances.

On one hand, the department was eliciting entire information from Shn

Man03 ‘Aggarwal by recordmg his statement again and agam and on the

other hand, it was denying the assessee 10 cross-examine him against such

informaﬁon.. It is strange that the Assessmg Ofﬁcer caﬂed Shn Manoj

Aggarwal dunng assessment proceedings and exammed himn under section
131, but even at this stage, the statement was recorded behmd the back of

the assessee’ although the assessee was pamapatmg m the assessment

- )
iy
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proceedings. The Assessing Officer, instead of discharging the burden
himself, directed the assessee to produce Shri Manoj Aggarwal when he was

requested to provide opporturu'ty of cross—exammaflon It is the settled rule

| of natural justice that ewdence cannot be recorded behind the back of g party

' participating in the proceedings and if such evidence Is 10 be used against

such party then the party concerned shall be given full opportunity to meet -
such evidence and also to confront the same The burden is definitely on the
authority concerned. The Assessing Officer was discharging functions asa
quasijudicial authority and jn compliance to the rules of natural justice, he
was under a legal obhgahon to provide opportumty to the assessee to
confront the mtnesses exammed by him . durmg assessiment proceedmgs

even lf such opportunity ‘was not demanded The instant case is 3 glaring

" example where the assessmg authority has del,lberateiy neglected ﬂ'uS Iegal _

351 To ‘Tepeat, right from the very beginning, the assessee demanded the

r1ght to cross-examination byt neither the Assessmg Ofﬁcer nor the ld CIT
(A) allowed this prayer The cross examination of Shri Manoj Aggarwal
was very much essential in_the facts and circumstances of the present case.
Shri ‘Manoj Aggarwal gave several statements. In the carlier statements,

there was no mcnmmatmg evidence against the assessee and in the -

subsequent Statements, there were dlscrepanexes and inconsistencies, which
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were highlighted by the assessee including the variations in his signatyres.
The Assessing Officer had used this witness to meet out the version of the
assessee. He has also tried to corroborate the other evidence by this witness.
Thus, under these facts and Circumsi:ances and in view of the fact that the
oral .testimbny of Shri Manoj Aggarwal who himself was engaged inr the
dubious dealings has been made anchor sheet for involving the assessee, the
denial of right of cross-éxaminatién of this witness has seriously effected the
'basic right of the assessee and, in fact, sﬁch denial is to be viewed very

. seriously as it is fatal to the entire proceedings.

36. If we go to the background of the entire: matter and 1n parucular of.‘

* i

various statements of Shn Manoj Aggamal then it becomes aH the more

_ clear that he was trying to exculpate hzmse]f by snvolwng the assessee and -

o others Thus; he was -1_101: an’ mdspendent wxmess-but an mtera_sted Wlti_les-_s, —

and the testimony of such interested witness cannot be viewed without
caution. As the Assessmg Ofﬁcer has violated the rulés of natural justice in
~denymg the opportunity of cross-exammatlon to the assessee, the statements

recorded behind the back of the assessee of such witness cannot be utilized

‘apainst him.

37.  The Assessing Officer has considered the submissions of the assessee

on this issue and rejected the request for cross-examination by placmg




reliance on the deeiéion of Hon'ble Kerala High Court in the case of MK.

' ' , “
Thomas vs. State of Kerala 40 STC 278 (Full Bench), decision in the case of

Manindra Nath Chatterjee vs. Collector of central Excise 1977 Tax LR 1754

~and the decision of Madras High Court in the case of T. Devasahaya Nadar

vs. CIT, Madras 51 ITR 20 and has held that it could not be stated as a
general proposition of law that ‘any evidence’ upon which the. department
mlght rely should have been subjected to cross-examination. Thus, the
Assessmg Officer has rejected the objectlon of the assessee being without

any basis.

38. We have gone through vanou‘s authontles on the issue and are of the |

opinion that the Assessmg Officer has not been able to properly appreciate

: --the deelsmn of Hon'ble Kerala Htgh Court m the case of MK Thomas

(supra)) and has wrongly applied the ratio of that deCJ.SIOII to the facts of the

present case. In that case, the case of the assessee was that the nce mﬂl was

idle durmg the ﬁrst half of the assessment year 1965—66 and thereafter the
_ control of the mﬂl was g1ven to one Pappachan as lessee and, therefore the

peuuoner had no tumover from the mﬂl for the year under quesuon The

assessmg authonty estimated the tumover by two and h.alf times of the bid
amount. Meanwlnle the Intelhgence Ofﬁcer mvestlgated the mill and

selzed some record and aiso reeorded the statement of Pappachan who

| demed any Iease and subxmtted that he was only working as an emnloyee of
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~ the' petitioner, ~ Thereafter, the Assessing Officer issued revised pre.-

assessment notices. - The objections of the petitioner against the notices were

rejected and the assessment was finalized. An appeal against the order of

assessment was dismissed by AAC and further an appeal before the Tribuna]

remained unsuccessful The assessee, m the Tax Revision before the

Hon'ble Htgh Court asserted that he should have been afforded an

opportunity to cross examine Pappachan before the latter’s statement was
used against him in completing the best of judgement assessment. In
support of this argument, reliance was placed on ﬂle decision of K.T.
Shaduli vs. State of Kerala 29 STC 44 and on other decisions. It was found
in that case that 0 Tequest for apphcauon 0. summon Pappchan was .made

by the assessee to the authontles The Hon’ble ngh Court, after

| con51denng the Provisions of section 17 and 53 of the General Sales Tax Act '
o and the decmlon in the case of K.T. Shaduli vs. State of Kerala 20 STC 44

held that on the facts diSClOSed the petmoner was not entitled to right the .

_cross—exammanon So far as the present case is concerned, the facts are

totaﬂy different. In the present case, as opposed to the facts of the assessee

had demanded right of cross-examination at the ﬁrst Opportunity before the

.Assessmg Officer not only once but also repeatedly, As pomted out above,

11 the complemty of this matter and the importance attached to the statement

of Shri Manoj Aggarwal and vanous dlscrepanc:les m his statement, the =

T
FE
.
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Tequirement of opportunity of cross-examination was most essential and

fundamental.

-39, The other cases on which the Assessing Officer has placéd reliance

are also distinguishable on facts.

.40.  The issue has been considered by varions authorities and the right of

cross-examination has been considered an essential ingredient of reasonable

~opportunity to be afforded to an assessee. In the case of KT Shaduli vs,

State of Kerala '(supra), the view of the Hon'ble Kerala High Court was
upheld by t!}eﬁHon’ble Supre;ne Court. Ti:lis decision is reported in 3;9 STC

478.

41, In the case of Vasanji Ghela & Co. vs. Cbmx_nis__sioner of Sales Tax 40

STC 544, the Hon'ble Bombay High Court has considered various

authlorities and has held as unde; :

“ Held, that, on the facts and circumstances of the case, the
order of the Deputy Commissioner was bad on the ground of
non-compliance with the principles of natural Jjustice and the
order of the Tribunal which upheld the order of the Deputy
Commissioner was also bad on the same ground. -

The rules of natural justice do require that normally

- speaking, if the statement of a person is intended to be used as
evidence against a party, it must be made available to the party
against whom it is intended to be used and such party must be
given a fair opportunity to explain the same or comment on it.
What would amount to fair opportuntty would depend upon the



facts and circumstances of each case. If such a party makes »
request to be allowed to cross-examine the person, who made
the statement, for the purpose of meeting the statement or with
a view to commenting thereon, such a request cannot, save in
exceptional or special cases, be denied without violating the
principles of natural Justice ?

In that case, the assessee was carrying on the business of grocery. They had |

shown sales to Ms. Keshavji Hirji. These sales were disallowed on the
basis of written letter of Mis, Keshavji Hirji and his statement given to
Collector of Sales-tax. The assessee requested that the original letter should

‘be made available to him. The applicants were not permitted to read the

original letter but the gist of information avaxlabie with the department was

communicated to th..m The statement of Keshavji Hlle was that they did

not affect the purchases ﬁ'OI}I the assessee Hewever after examlnmg the
books of account the Deputy Comnussmner upheld the dlsallowance The "

anphcants prefexred rewmon agamst the oxder of Deputv Commlsszoner

whlch was d1sxmssed by the Tribupal. It was contended before the Tribunal

that the order of the Deputy Comnnssmner was bad on the ground that the '
rules of natyral Justice had not been comphed W1th The Tribunal observed =

that the necessary portion of the letter sent by Keshavji had been made.

~ available to the applicants and Olp.portuuities t0 Cross examination was mot
necessary. Before the ﬁon'ble High Court, it was contended that it was
obligatory on the part of the Deputy Commissioner to offer Keshavji Hirji
for cross-examination although no specific fequest was made. The Hon'ble

Court observed that the demand made by the applicants in reply to the

WA,

EN
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quéstionnaire submitted to the Additional Colleétdr, requestipg for an
Opportunity to read the Jetter of Keshawji in the original, also indicated that _
the :applicants might desire to .cross-examine Keshavji Higi. It was also
observed that the demand for cross-examination of Keshavji Hirji was not
given up. Under these circumstances, after placing reliance on the decision

of Division Bench of Punjab & Haryana I—IighVCourt i the case of Pahar

. Chand & Sons vs. State of Punjab 30 STC 211 and afier making reference to

other decisions, the Hon'ble Court held that it was the dﬁty of the Deputy
Comnnsswner to have given an opportunity to the assessee {0 cross examine
Keshav_}l Hirji and his failure amounts to violation of principles of natural
justice. On this ba315 the order of the Id. Comj:mssmner was held bad in law

and the order of the Tnbunal was also held bad in law for rhe same reason.

42. The assessee has also placed reliance on the decision of Delhi Bonch

of ITAT in the case of Satish Gupta vs. ITO rendered by ITAT, Delhi Bench

- SMC-IV in ITA No.57 & 100004 (assessment year 1995-96). In this case

élSo, the. issue involved was as to Whefher the Assessing Officer was

requlred to aﬁ"ord an oppoxtumty of cross exammahon of Shri Anand

Prakash Tlns statement was made by the Assessmg Officer in_addition to
- , %a;mﬁ‘rﬁ ‘
L . 5 . = '. . . - I .;S\ vt e _“:'"‘
other evidence. The assessee was not given opportuni .@‘QIG’S"S—'GX&‘EHJ.E{Q%
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deleted the addition by holding that the Assessing Officer’s failure to allow

Cross-examination vitiates the entire addition. The observations of the
‘Bench in the order dated July 2, 2004 are as under :

“The assessee further requested specifically to the Assessing
Officer to allow him to cross-examine Anand Prakash. Despits
these two requests, Anand Prakash was not allowed to be cross-
examined by the assessee, a position which is not disputed
before me by the department. The entire addition is based on
the statement of Anand Prakash. As rightly pointed out on
behalf of the assessee, if this statement is ignored, there is
hardly any another direct evidence to justify the addition.
Therefore, it was incumbent upon the Assessing Officer to
afford an opportunity to the assessee to cross-examine Anand
Prakash. He did not do so. The effect of the Assessing
Officer’s failure to do so is that the entire addition is bad. In
the case of Kishan Chand Chelaram vs, CIT 125 ITR 713, THE
Supreme Court held that if any evidence itself used against the ;
assessee 15 not shown to him and anqopportunity to controvert _*
- the same is not given to the assessée that evidence shall not be
" admissible in support of the addition. It was specifically held in
 that case that the Income-tax authorities are bond to accede to
the request for cross-examination and if they do not do so, the .

~ addition. cannot be sustained in the abseénce of any'_‘qth'ei. oo

- evidence in support of the same. This position applies squarely
to the present case. The addition suffers from a basic infirmity -
in the semse that it has been made without accepting the
assessee’s request made at least twice before the Assessing
Officer, to cross-examine Anand Prakash. I, thereforc? delete
the addition.” ' '

43. Tt has to be pointed out that it is not the case of the department that

- Shri Manoj Aggarwal was not available or it was not within the control of
the Assessing Officer to summon him. The powers of the Assessing Officer

as are available under section 131 of Income-tax Act are very wide and such

- powers have 10 be utilized for meeting out the ends of justice. In fact, the
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Assessing Officer has eﬁercised this power frequently and it statutory power
cen be exercised against the assessee it has to be equally examined for the
benefit of the assessee more particularly when he craves the concerned
authorities for doing so. The denial of such power for the disadvantage of
the assessee shows glaring conduct of bias and unfairness on the part of the
authority and such a conductris an attempt to cause injustice to hIm It may
be pointed out that the Assessing Officer has also utilized the statement of

Shri Neeraj Gupta against the assessee although this witness has not made

any statement against the assessee. Again, no opportunity was given to the

assessee to cross-examination even this witness, which further strengthened
the allegatzon of the assessee that the demal of cross—examma‘a i of this

mtness was also to the dlsadvantage of the assessee. On examination of the

~ entire matenal therefore we are unable to appreclate the approach of the

Assessmg Officer who was expected to be fair to the assessee also in the

quam-}udlcial proceedings conducted by him. In the case of CIT vs. "SE;ion

" Caryes Ltd. 105 ITR 212, the Hon'ble Supreme Court ef India has observed

as under :

“The taxing authorities exercise quasi jud1c1al powers and in
doing so they must ‘5 in a fajr and not a partisan manner:
Although it is part of their duty to ensure that no Whlch s
legitimately due from an assessee should remain ecevered
they must also at the same time not act in a manner as might,
indicate that scales are weighted against the assessee o
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44. At the time of hearing, 1d. CIT DR submitted that if any prejudice hag
been caused .to the assessee tﬁen the matter may be remanded and
Opportunity to cross-examination may be given by restoring the matter to the
| file of the Assessing Officer. Against tlns submission, the argument ﬁf the
1d. counsel for the assessee was that the contents of the statement of Shri
Manoj Aggarwal and Shri Neeraj Gupta cannot be utilized against it and the
Tevenue cannot be given a second Inning by restoring the matter to the file of

the Assessing Officer.

45, In view of the background and facts narrated above, we find full force

in the submissions of the 1d. counsel for the asse;ss;ee. A similar plea of the

-

department was considered by Chandiéarh Bench of LT.AT. in the case of

- Smt. Neena Syal vs. ACIT 70 ITD-62. Tn that case also, the seized

~ docuinents wvere not confronted to the assessee before makmgthe additions.”

The Def)amnent took the stand that the matter may be restored to the file of

the Assessing Officer. It was also a search case. The Bench rejected the

prayer of the revenue by observing as under :

“As regards Department’s plea for restoring the matter to the
file of the Assessing Officer, it may be mentioned that the

- provisions of Chapter XIVB are more stringent and have placed -

* 2 greater burden on the departmental authorities to comply with
the essential provisions 6f law and that these provisions have to
be construed strictly. Thus, in a situation where the Assessing
Officer had failed to comply with the basic provisions of
section 69/69B, whereunder the impugned addition had overtly
been made it was difficult to accept the plea that the matter may
be restored to the file of the Assessing Officer, so that the




+ above observations, we allow Gfound- No.3.in favour of the assessee.

Rs. 3 ,20,48. 898 84
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requisite matenal can be conﬁrontcd to the assessee and then the
addition made. It is not the function of the. Tribunal to further
allow opportunity to the Assessing Officer 50 as to cover up
legal lapses made by him while: making addition by restoring
the matter back to his file. Further, the power of remand under
“section 254 is required to be exercised in a disciplined and
responsible manner and that the same cannot be invoked in a
case where the Assessing Officer has not cared to follow the
provisions of section 69/69B, inasmuch as no explanation had
been called for by the Assessing Officer in. relation to the
documents relied upon by him for making the impugned
addition and further the said documents which were found with
other persons, had not been specifically confronted to the
assessce. Hence, the plea of revenne to restore the issue to the
file of the Assessing Officer and to delete the zmpugned
addition of Rs.4.83 lakhs could not be accepted.”

Since, in the present case, the repeated requests of the assessee were turned -
down by the Assessmg Officer as we}l as by the Id CIt (A) for Cross

cxammmg Shn Manoj Aggarwal and Shri Neeraj Gupta, it will not be proper

. torestore the matter back to the Assessing Officer for this purpose.

46.  In view of the above the staiement of Shri Mano_; Agparwal whlch

has been used agamst the assessee cannot be ut{hzed agamst 1t because in

.denymg the right of cross- -examination, the Assessing Oﬂicer and the 1d.

: CIT (A) have floated the settled canons of nafural. Justice, * On the basis of

L P

47 Ground Nos. 4 @ 5 challenge  the sustenance of addltlon of-.
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48.  The Assessing Officer has made addition of Rs.3,33,24 965 84 o

- account of bogus accommodation book cutries in the form of share profits.

For this purpose, he has matnly placed reliance on the entries in the diaries

seized (Annexure A-18) during the search under section 13} from the

premises of Shri Manoj Aggarwal and Annexure A-13 copy of account of

~ Ms. Friends Portfolio (P) Limited. It was observed by him that page 83 to

85 of Annexure A-13 contamned details as per which profit of

Rs.3,26,48,898 .84 was shown to have been earned by M/s. Fnends Portfolio

(P) Limited on various transactions of shares and brokerage.

49.  So far as the transactlons entered 1 in the Annexure A-13 seized durmg

d -

the search are concerned, the assessee has not dlsputed the fact and has

_raiher achmtted these transactmns However the ver smn of the assessee Was Ky

- ﬂlat all these transacuons were genuine and quy supported by the books of

account maintained by it in the regular course of business. In order to

: substantlate his version, the assessee submitted all the details and furnished

documentaly evidence before the Assessmg Officer mcludmg the following :

(i)  Copy of ¢onduct note in the name of M/s. Friends Portfolio (P)
: Ltd. giving time and details of transacnons _

()  Copy of sale bill issued to M/s. Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd ;

()  Copy of account of M/s. Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd.;

(tv) . Copy of bank statements evidencing payment before the close.

of the year;
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(v)  Certificate regarding turnover; and

(vi) Andited balance sheet and proﬁt & loss account of the assessee
company.

Theeedocuments are also available at pages 138 to 259 of the paper book.
The Assessing Officer did not accept the version of the aesessee and on the
other hand beld the transactions to be bogus by placing reliance on the
statement of Shri Manoj Aggarwal, Shri Neeraj Gupta and entries on page
nos.1 to 10 of Annexure A-18. He has also- supported his conelusmn by

‘mentioning various other circumstances,

: 50 +In appeal, the id. CIT (A) has upheld the approach‘of the Assessmg
Ofﬁcer He has held that the transactions were not done by the assessee on
| behalf of M/s. Friends Portfoho (P) Ld. hut these were its own uadmg in

shares Wthh have been transferred. to M/s Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd.- The

assessee had chalienged the findings of the Id. CIT (A) before us.

51.  The Id. counsel for the assessee, Shri Ved Jain submitted before us

that the Departmental authorities have failed to appreciate the facts properly.

Firstly, he submitted that the statement”of Shri Mam)j Aggarwal cannot be. .

used agamst the assessee because RO oppormmty was given to eross €Xamine
him. Secondly, on merits also, it was submitted by lnm that S]Jrl ManQ} &

Aggarwal had earlier submitted that the transactions amountmg to 100
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Crores approximately were done by him on commission basis which shows

that the remaining transactions done by him with the assessce and other

companies were genunine. It was pointed out by him that in the statement

‘Tecorded on 11.9.2000, Shri Maﬂqj Aggarwal gave name of various pe:éons
with whom his transactions were not genuine but, in the last, the name of the
assessee did not appear. - It was further pointed out by him that even in the
statement dated 19.6.2002, Shri Mano; Aggarwal confirmed his statement
dated 11 2 2000 wherein name of the assessee did not appear. It was also
submitted by the Id. counsel for the assessee that the statement of Shn
Manoj Aggarwal has not been accepted by the Assessing Officer in its

entlrety End although the Assessmg Officer has held the transactlons carried

out by hlm as bogus but no addition even on substantlve or protective basis

. has been made in his case. The 1d. ‘counse] also p]aced rehancc on followmg -

L _;udgemﬂnts

{1 CITws. Eastem Commercial Entelpnses 2101TR 102 (Cal )
(i) - Gargldm Jwalaprasad vs. CIT 96 ITR 97 (AlL)
(if) Paharchand and Sons vs. State of Punjab.30 STC 211 (Punj)) -

The submission of the assessee was that the assessee had carried out all the
transactions thropgh stock. exchanges and made all theT payments through
a;:count payee cheques. | It was pointed out by him that the transactions have
been duly recorded in the account of M/s. Friends Portfolio (P) Lid. In this

regard, reference was also made to various contract notes and other material.

P
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The 1d. counsel also assailed the findings of the Assessing Ofﬁce_;r and thd d.-
CIT (A) regarding client agreement, note taking margin money, acceptance

by some of the beneficiaries and entries in the diary. In support of his

' contention, he placed reliance on various authorities including the

following : _

(1 ACIT vs. Miss Lata Mangeshkar 97 [TR 696;

() CIT vs. Shr_i Chamanlal Dhingra 171 Taxation 272;

(i) CIT vs. V.C. Shukda (1998) 3 S.C.C. 410; |

(iv) Chandradhar GOSWBIDI Vs, Gauhatl Bank Ltd. -
AIR 1967 S C. 1058;

(v) - Hiralal Mahablr Prasad (H,R 1967)1 P&H 435,

(v1) : Straptex India (P) Ltd._vs. DCIT 84 ITD 320; and

(vil) Prarthana Construction (P) Ltd, vs. DCIT 70 TIJ 122,

The ld Departmental Representaﬂve on the other hand, supported the order

of the Assessmg Ofﬁcer and that of the ld CIT (A)

5'_2.7 We have careﬁ_llly consxdered the facts of th1$ matter ent;re matenal _

' placed before us and the nval *sublmsswns of the Id representaﬁves of the o

pames On the perusal of the show cause notice dated 17.11 2004 and the;
assessment order, it is found that the Assessing Officer has placed reliance

on the documents found and seized during the course of search fiom the
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premises of Shri Manoj Aggarwal, the statement of Shri Manoj Aggarwa]
and that of Shri Neeraj Gupta and certam other circumstances for making the
addition of Rs.3,28,48,898 84. It has to be mentioned here that no search or

survey was conducted upon the assessee. ‘During the search in the premises

of Shri Manoj Aggarwal and Ms. Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd., no document

or material of the assessee was found and seized to show undisclosed

mncome of the assessee.

34.  During the course of search, in the Annexure A-13 on pages 83 to 85, |

- copy of account of M/s. Friends Portfolio (P.) Ltd. was found. As per these

documents proﬁt of Rs 3 26' 48 898.84 was found to have been eamed by

T o,

M/s. Friends Porf:foho (P) Ltd. on various. transactlons of shares. ’Ihe '

- transactions of shewmg this profit of MJs. Fnends Portfoho (P) Lid. have o

-_not been demed by the assessee Tihr—* case of the assessoe iy that the :

fransactions done by it with M/s. Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd. were on the bas1s
of client agreement and all these transactions were carried oyt through
balﬂdng channel. Thus, the contents of page 83 to 85 of Annexure A-13

showing the ﬁgures of profit of M/s. Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd. cannot be

taken to be incriminating evidence agamst the assessee and on the basis of

these contents, it cannot be said that the profit shown to have been earned by

M/s. Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd. was the income of the assessee.
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54.1 The other document found and seized during the course of search is

Annexure A-18 on Ijage 110 of this diary two cheques bearing No.005357

-and 005356 of Rs.50 lacs each have been mentioned on 25.3.2000. These

cheques have been received from M/s. SMC. Again, since the payments

were made by M/s. SMC, i.e., the present asscssee through cheques and

further since the assessee has not denied the 1ssuance of these cheques to

M/s. Friends Portfolio (P) Lid., the cheques cannot be treated to be a

material relevant for making the addition of Rs.3,26,48,898_84. |
Lues

35.  The entry of cheques of Rs. 50,5% each 1ssued in the name of M/s

Fn'enc}s Portfolio Q’j Lid. finds place i the bogks of account pf the assesseé.

From the statement of account of the assessee of Canara Barnk for the period

21.3:2000 to 31.3 2000 ava.ﬂable at page 240 of the paper book, it is found '

that both . of these cheques which were 1ssued on 25.3.2000, have been

cleared on 27.3.2000. On page 232 of the paper book is the statement of

~account which also duly shows the,eptries of cheques of Rs.50,000/- each

issued by the assessee on 24.3.2000.

36, In view of the aboye documentary evidence, the statement of the

assessee that all the transactions have been done by him with M/s. Friends

- Portfolio (P) Ltd. in regular course of business and through banking channel

is found substantiated. Thus, on the basis of documents found during the
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course of search, namely, Annexure A-13 (p'ages' 83 to 85 of the paper
book), no adverse inference can be drawn against the assessee and on the

basis of these documents, it cannot be said that the transactions carried out

by him were bogus.

57.  On page 1 of the above mentioned diary (Annexure A-18), there was

an entry of cash of Rs.99 lacs. The Assessing Officer has comrelated this

payment with the cheques, referred to above.  The contents of this diary have
been reproduced on page 19 of assessment order. The Assessing Officer has

| inferred that it is a corresponding cash entry a‘gainst. the receipt of cheque on

'+ subsequent date. The- entry mentions ‘SMC”. NQ documentary or oral

- oA

evidence has been adduced to corroborate thlS document with the assessee

Itis not explamed ar proved that the amount of Rs.99 Iacs was. pald mn cafsh

o 10 the assessee on ’?4 3.2000. Ttis fmther not proved. that this amcunt was

pald n heu of cheques to be recewed on the next date. The mode of transfer

of this monéy to the assessee has not '_becn disclosed. Even Shri Manoj -

Aggarwal _h_as.’not disclosed ‘the mande’f ‘zmd the mode thfough which the
cash amount of Rs.99 lacé was délivéred to the assessee. No other witness
has been produced to prove this fact. Even Shri Neeraj Gupta has not
adn:utted that he brought cheques; from the assessce and took the cash in lieu
thereof or took the amount of Rs.99 lacs from M/s. Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd.

or Shri Manoj Aggarwal and paid that cash. In the accounts of the assessee
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or at any other place, no evidence has been found or oo.He'cted.to show that
the assessee had received cash of Rs.99 Iacs ﬁ'om Shri Manoj Aggarwal
The author of the entries has also not been produced 1o prove that the entxy
was made on the bas1s of some actual transactions. Thus, the document i.e.
page 1 of diary is only a dumb document and its confents cannot be proved
against' the assessee in absence of further mateﬁal Or evidence to corroborate
this document and to connect the same witﬁ the assessce. | The assessee, on

the other hand, has denied the allegations levelled against it.

58. Shri S.C. Aggarwal, Director of the assessee Company was examined
by the Assessmg Officer on 21 10.2004. Agamst the above entnes he:has
categoncally submitted that the transactlons undertaken by M/s. SMC with

© MJs. Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd. were genuine transactxons It has been
' speelﬁcaily Stated by him that Shn Mano;j Aggarwal had taken the proﬁt

through account payee cheques He has also categoncaﬂy stated mat he had

the assessee has filed the: detaﬂed aceoonts iﬁcludfilg 'the 'eontract .Iiotes,

bank accounts sale b1Hs etc coples of Wh.lCh have been ﬁeld m the paper |
book also Thus, . on one hand, there is documentary ewdence fully
corroborated by the oral ewdence of the assessee to substantlate its version |
and on the other hand, there is oaly dumb document in the’ shape of

unexplained entry of payment of cash io the assessee.
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58.A The evidence in the shape of entry regarding payment of cash of
Rs.99 lacs has not been considered against Shri Manoj Aggarwal or M/s;
Friends Pﬁr’tfolio (P) Ltd. It is not explamed by Shri Manoj-Aggafwal as to
from which source this amount came to him. In fact, the department has not
made any enquiry from him about this undisclosed income. The payment of
cash cannot be taken as out of the amount received through cheques against
the cheques which were cleared on 27.3.2000 whereas the amount in cash
dveamenld

has been paid on 24.3.2000, thus on the basis of such unproved eﬁcm:r., the

addition made in the hands of the assessee cannot be justified at all.

[ T A o™

59. Even assummg for a moment that cash of Rs 99 lacs was received by

- the assessee n heu -of cheque of Rs.l crore, the addmon. of_

.:RSB 26 48 898.84 camnot ‘be justified on the basis' of the Ione entry of

payment of cash in the diary. -The Assessmg Officer has not been able to

collect any other evidence to show that the assessce had received the entire

profit shown to have been paid by it to M/s. Friends Portfolio Py Ltd. Itis
to be noted that it is a case of block assessment under section ISSBD and no
addition in the block assessment can be legally justified unless the same is

made on the basis of material or evidence found or seized during the course

of search.

,,,,,,,
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60.  The maiter has to be viewed from another angle. The_ diary does not

| pertain fo the assessee nor was in the handwriting of any employee of the
asses'see. It was found with a third party. A presumption can be raise don
the basis of possess1on of a document found during the course of search only
against a searched person and thus no adverse inference can be drawn
against the assessee on the basis of the possession of the diary with the third
party. In this regard, reference may be made to the following cases :

(1) AddLCIT vs. Miss I.ata Mangeshkar 97 ITR 696

The assessee submitted her returns of income disclosing his
professional receipts for assessment years 1962—63 1963-64 and
1964-65 T he returns were pnmanly based on the d1anes which were
mamtamed by the assessee in respect of amounts recewed by her from
producers eic. The ITO seized a Iedger mamtamed by the ﬁxm known '
:_as Vasu Films of Madras Iu ﬂns Iedger there were certam entries
and on the basis of these. entries, the Assessing Officer held that the
assessee had concealed her real income by not showing certéin
payments for which no receipts were issued by her. In this regard,
reliance was made on the entries, which were as under |

“20-9-1962 16/8 To Lata Mangeshkar 800 Wplus LF. Rs.
700 B 102 1500

11-6-1963 - 16/5 To Lata ' - 123 2000
' 123 2000

Shri N. Vasudev Menon, thé managing partner of Vasu Films and one

| C.S. Kumar, the firm’s Bombay manger also explained that the l_ettef
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‘W’ put against the figures mentioned in the entries represented
payment in White while the letter ‘B’ to be against some items
indicated payments in Blaek. ' The assessee was given an opportunity
to cross-examination these persons. The Assessing Officer accepted
the entries as showing payments made to the assessee and as the
assessee had not shown these payments, these were treated to be the
Payments made outside the books of accounf. The AAC confirmed
the additions. Before the Tribunal while challenging the addition, it
- was submitted that the lower authorities were not Justified in drawing
the presumptions or suspicions on the basie of eniries .in the diary.
The Tnbunal deleted the addltlon by acceptmg the plea of the
: assessee The Hon‘ble Bombay ngh Court upheld the view taken by
- the Tribunal It , was e_bserved by the Hon'ble Court that the
‘con*espondmg enfries were not found m the day book and in absence ‘
of that mere production of ledger entries would be of no ‘avail, as
there would be no guarantee about the t['llthﬁlhleSS or genumeness of
the entnes in'the ledger. It was further held that the entnes are merely "
conobora_hve evidence and in absence of proper corroborative
' evidence, the primary duect evidence would alone be required to b
: e«xamined and appreciated. In that case,' such evidence consisted m

the testimony of Shri C.S. Kumar. It was found to be unreliable by




the Hon'ble Court. The Hon'ble Court has also ma"c_ie ‘the following
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observation :

“After all, the entries in the day-book or the ledger would
be a corroborative piece of evidence and once the direct
evidence of the person who is said to have made
payments in “black” to the assessee is disbelieved, we do
not think that any value could be attached to the entries in
the ledger or to the entries in the day-book even if one
had béen produced. In the circumstances, we feel that
the questions which are sought to be referred arise out fa
finding of fact recorded by the Tribunal on pure
appreciation of evidence.”

(1)
The Hon'ble Supreme Court has also considered the issue. According

made by another person against such person.

CBI vs. V.C. Shukla and Others 1998 (3) SCC 410 SC -

.to the Hon'ble Coun,; the diaries are netrbooks; of account and no

| Iiebility can be fasten on the person on the basis of a unilateral entry

. judgment, the Hon'ble Court has ebserve'd as ﬁnder :

34, The: rat;onale behind admlss1b1hty of parﬁes

books of account as evidence is that the régularity of
_habat, the difficulty of falsification and the fair certainty
“of ultimate detention give them in a sufficient degree a
- .. probability of trustworthiness (Wigmore on Evidence,
- page 1546). Since, however, an ¢lement of selfiinterest’ -
-and partisanship of the entrant to make a person — behind
" whose back and without whose’ knowledge the entry is -
. made — liable. cannot be ruled out the additional
safeguard of insistence upon other independent evidence

to fasten him with such liability, has been provided for in

~ Section 34 by’ ncorporating the words “such statements

shall not alonpe. be sufﬁ(nent to charge any person with

Tiability”.

In para 34 of the
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After considering various decisions, the Hon'ble Court hag observed in
para 39 that even correct and authentic entries in books of account

cannot without independent evidence of their trustworthiness, fixed g

liability on a person.

(ti) _Hira Lal Mahabir Pershad [ILR (1967) 1 P&H 435)

The Hon'ble Punjab and Haryana High Court has observed that such

entries though relevant were only a corroborative evidence and it is to

be shown further by some independent evidence that the entries
represent honest and real transactions and that monies were paid in

accordance with those entries.

' {iv) Prathana’c(msnucﬁon (P) Ltd_vs. DCIT 70 TTJ (Ahd) 122

Certain documents were found dunng the course of search operatxons .

i at the resdence of one - Shri Sureshbhzu Patel Whluh oontamed dctaﬂs i

of payment made to one Shri Aﬂlﬂbhal On these pages, there were
: number of entries with dates giving the name of the appellant and the

pmpose for whlch the same were given. The statement of Shri

Sureshbhai Patel was also recorded whereby he explained that these

bayments were own money paid to the appellant. The appellant was -

confronted with the statement of Shn Sureshbhai Patel as well as the
documents. The Assessing Officer rejected the explanation of the

assessee/appellant on the ground that the statement of Shri Sureshbhai
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Patel are to be relied upon as these amply confirm the seized

documents. In the appellate proceedings, the assessee again denied

-alleged payment and contended that no conclusion can be drawn
against him on the basis of these documents and the statement of Shri

Sureshbhai Patel. The Ahmedabad Bench of ITAT accepted the plea

of the assessee by observing as under :

“The first issue which calls for consideration 1s whether
these documents and loose Papers constitute admissible
and relevant evidence in support -of the Department’s
Case or not. It is a settled proposition as held by various
Jurisdictional authorities fhat the rigour of the rules of
evidence contained in the Evidence Act are mnot
applicable to the income tax proceedings. However, the
principles contained in the Evidence Act mcorporated
from the rules of natural Justice forming part of the
" common laiv would naturally be applicable to the income
tax proceedings. Now if we consider the evidentiary
value of these documents it is amply clear that these
loose papers and documents cannot possibly be construed
- @s books of accounts regularly kept in the ¢ourse of
business. Such evidence would, therefore, be outside the
purview of Section 34 of the Evidence Act, 1872. We
are therefore of the considered opinion that the Revenue
would not be justified in resting its case on the loose
papers and documents found at the resident of the third
~ party even if such documents contain narration of
fransactions with the assessee company. At this stage,
we may also refer to. the provisions of Section 132 (4A)
which would, in any case, not be apphlicable to a third
party from whose possession such papers and documents
have not been found by the Revenue. We find merit in
- the contention of the learned Counsel that the statement
of Shri Sureshbhai Patel ard Shr Deepak Mehta
recorded at the back of the assessee would not 1pso facto
conclude the case against the assessee particulars when
the maker of the statement has not been allowed to be
interrogated_ by the assessee company. Sureshbhai Pate]
and Deepak Mehta are the brokers and the transaction




involving the receipt of loan money have been according
to the Revenue, arranged through these persons. The
mere testimony of these brokers tendered at the back of
the assessee would not be sufficient to establish that the
loan money has been received by the assessee.”

61. The above judgement wh1ch is on similar facts, fully supports the

argument of the ld counsel for the assessee that the addition cannot be

sustained in the hands of the assessee on the basis of enty in the diary and

the statement of Shn Manoj Aggarwal.

62.  So far as the statement of Shri Manoj Aggarwal is concerned, if is not
proved that the entire amount of profit paid to M/s. Fnends Portfolio (P) Ltd.
.was the income of the assessee., Firstly, the earher statements did not relate

to the assessee aud secondly the statements are general and vague m nature

o ‘The statement cannot be used agamst the assessee n absenee ef 0pport1m1ty> o

: ‘to confmnt that witness and m absence of l:us Cross- exammatlon as has been'

held by us while decxdmg ground no.3 of this appeal.  Shri Manoj Aggarwal

did not refer to any transaction relating to the assessee in his letter dated
22.8.2000 when he admitted that Izahsaetions amounting to Rs.100 erores- o

approximately were done by him on commission basis. In his statement

dated 11.9.2000 and 19.6.2002 also, no specific allegation was made agajnst
assessee. So far as the -statemeﬁt dated 19.6.2002 is concerned, the assessee

- has even challenged the genumneness and authenticity of this staternent by




pointing out that.the signatures of Shri Manoj Aggarwal on this statement

nod”

did txitally with his signatures to his statement dated 14.12.2000.

63. So far as the last statement recorded.by the Assessing Officer on
9.11.2004 is concerned, again the aesessee has dispﬁfed the signatures of
Shri Manoj Aggarwal on this statement also. In any case, since the witness
was not cross-examiﬁed, his statement cannot be reiied for :sustaining the

addition made against the assessee.

64. The statement of Shri Neeraj Gupta has been mis-quoted by the
Assessing Of_ﬁc'exj. He has nowhere statedithat he was acting as a mea_iator

between the assessce and’zhas-;iaﬁ_icipated in the bogus transactions involved

- -in the present matter. -

65 The Assessmg Ofﬁcer has also taken support from certam othe;

curcumstances for makmg the addltlon These are as under -

(A) CL]ENT AGREEMENT
| .The Assessmg Ofﬁcer has observed that the chent agreement |
has not been signed by M/s Friends Portfoho (P) Ltd T}ns
allegation is found to be meoneet. The cllent agreement has

been duly obtained and signed by Director of M/s. Friends
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Portfolio (P) Ltd. The assessee had categofically stated this
| fact even before the 1d. CIT (A) and no effort has been made to
disprove the contention of the assessee. The Asséssing Officer
did not refer the signatures of Shri Manoj Aggarwal to any
handwritiﬁg expert to show that Shri Manoj Aggarwal did not
make signatures but somebody else had forged the same. It was
for the Assessing Officer to prove that if he wanted to disprove

the document.

(B) _ MARGIN MONEY NOT OBTAINED :

The A‘ssessmg Cfficer was of thé view that the assessee was,

k4 LS

EE ES

domg hJs own busmess ‘and had he been doing on beha]f of MJs.

 Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd. then he would have definitely taken

 ‘margin money. The contention of ﬂ;e:.asses'sef; béft_;re- the 1d. &

- CIT (A) was that there was credit in the account of M/s. Friends
Portfolio (P) Ltd. at the time of transaction was carried out and
that 15 why, there was no further reguirement of margin money

to safeguard any loss. Even if, any requirement of taking

margin money under circular fetter then also the transactions -

- «

cannot be held to be bogus ﬁlerely on the ground that n(; margin‘ :

money was taken before doing business on behalf of the client.

(€)_ ACCEPTANCE BY SOME OF THE BENEFICIARIES -
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The Assessing Officer has also observed that some of the

beneficiaries who transacted with MJs. Friends Portfolio P)

Ltd. -and Shﬁ Manoj AggarWaI accepted the entrics and

accef_)ted the transactions as bogﬁs and also got their matter
settled by the Settlenient Commission. On this basis, the
Assessing Officer has concluded that all the transactions
entered into by ShﬁManoj Aggarvi}al were bogus transactions.
Tn fact, even Shri Manoj Aggarwal, in tﬁe first instant, did not
accept that all the transactions entered into by him were bogus. |
Otherwise also, merely because some of the benéﬁciaﬁes, for
any reasogi,‘ apprOat;héd the Setﬂém‘ent Comxgis}ipﬁ that by

itself cannot be used against the assessee.

(D) ABNORMALITY OF TRANSACTIONS N SHARES :

the' "A.'s.;sessing “Officer has also poinfed out certain

abnormaimes n the ﬁansactlon of shares camcd out by

. assessee for IvI/s Fnends Portfoho (P) Ltd.. One of such

abnormahty as pomted out by th that the shares were not

transfexred n the D Mat Account of M/s Fnends Portfoho (P)
Ltd. The explanatlon of the assessee m ﬂ:us regard was that
enough money was not prowded by MS Fnends Portfoho {P)

Ltd. and if the transactions are on crecht basis, the brokers are
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| not supposed to .deliver in the éccount o;’.[i;eir clients tilt théy
recéive the payment frdm the account of M/s. Friends Portfolio
(P) Ltd. Tt was pointed out by the 1d. counsel for the assessee
that they have not made full payments as such the delivery was
delayed. The infefence of the Assessing Officer that the
ﬁansactions entered into by the assessee were bogus entries and
that 1s the reason for the delay in delivery. Sﬁch inference also
not fqund substantiated. The ASsessing Officer has also made
the allegation that the transactions entercd‘by the assessee were
bogus entries and the entries were inade with the intention to
transfer the profit to M/s. 'F'rif:r._lds Portfolio (P) Ltd. :This
éllggaﬁon 1s élso ﬁ()t colré(:t.! I} ﬁe transactioﬁsf are not ée;ﬁine

. then the profit arising out of the same cannot be undisclosed

income of the assessee. The assessec has' shown that ‘the

transactions were genuine and were entered into normal course
of business in its books of account. The details of each

* transactions are entered into contract notes.

65.1 On consideration of the entire material and relevant circumstances and -

on the basis of the authc;ﬁties cited above, the entrygregarding cash payment

does not prove the case of the department. AS observed above, this -

evidence has not been properly corroborated. So far as the oral testimony of

Shri Manoj Aggarwal is concerned, firstly, such evidence cannot be used

o,
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'against the assessce for want of opportunity of cross-examination, as

discussed above, and secondly, his testtmony has to be discredited and
disbelieved on merits also on account of his admitted conduct of carrying on

illegal business of bogus transactions and . dubious nature of activities.

Neither the Assessing Officer nor the 1d. CIT (A) were. Jjustified in giving

credence to the evidence of a person who had dubious dealings, his

credibility and integrity is also shattered in view of. discrepancies,

inconsistencies and mfirmities found in his statements which have also been

highlighted above. As his illegal transactions were discovered during the

course of search, his only object mght have been to defend himself by

mvolwng others HJS statements are, therefore se}f-servmg The

department has also favoured hma ‘because even protectwe assessment has

not been ‘made in ]:us hands- regardmg alleged bogus transactlons found

'-durmg the course of search. Nezther the Assessing Ofﬁcer nor the CIT (A)

made any enqmzy or camed out any mvestlganon at the tune of complenon
of assessment of Shri Mano_r Aggarwal and M/s Friends Portfohow(P) Lid.
by mdependentiy examining the genuineness and the comrectness of his

statements. His statement has been aceepted-on‘- its face value without any

~vertfication and cross-verification from any other person’ with whom he

carried out the transactions and received cheques etc. Since the cheques
were deposited in his account and in the account of M/s. Friends Portfolio

(P) Ltd., it was to be examined as to whether such transactions were benami
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1 nature.  The 1d. CIT (A) has supported the view taken by the Assessing
Officer without going into the documentary evidence filed by the assessee
on record and without assigning reasons for discarding the same. The
evidentiary value of Sh;i Manoj Aggarwal was required to be have been
cxammed in the context of the facts stated above but. the 1d. CIT (A) upheld
the allegation made by the Assessing Ofﬁcer. regarding the addition of
Rs.3,26,48,898.84 although no direct testimony was available to sustain this
addition. There is not Aan 1ota of evidence to éhow that the whole amount

transferred by the assessee to M/s. Friends Portfolio (P) Ltd. was refunded

back to the assessee and was, in fact, its own income. In absence of

- documentary or circumstantial evidence, the addition cannot be jﬁstiﬁed n:
the block assessme;i done under sectton iSSBD without there bem‘gi
matenal found in the course of search to substanuate the same. The addition

s 1s therefore based on assumpﬂon without there bemg any maienai or

ewdence o substantlate the same and, therefore, cannot be upheld.

'\: --J‘)‘."

65.2 On the other hand, the assessee has proved that transactions were

- carried by it through banking channel. The purchase and sale of shares by it
18 duly evidenced in the books of account. The asscssee is a recognized
share broker %md no defect was found in the books of account maintajned by
him, which was also duly audited. The rate at which these transactions were
carried- out was also not disputed. The assessee had dealings with several

parties and such dealings are also fully recorded in the books of account,
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Whi.;lh is also evidenced by the decumentary evidence on record and which
,wﬁré not found fo be bogus or fake tra.fnsacﬁons.. The oral testimony of Shri
S.C. Aggarwal supports and corroborates the docmnlentary evideﬁce. Thus, -
the documentary evidence adduced by the assessee in which no discrepancy |
is found cannot be discredited only by statement of a person Whose
testimony is not free from doubt. In the case of Morarka Properties (P) Ltd.
and Ors. vs. Biharilal Morarka & Ors. AIR 1978 SCC 300, it has been held
tﬁat in the face of documentary evidence on record, the oral evidence 1S not
entitled to any weight. In the c.ase of R.S. Nayak vs. AR, Antulay AIR 1986
SCC 2045, the Hon'ble Apex Court has held that documentary evidence is to

be preferred over oral evidence in case conflict between the two.

66. In view of the above, the addition made by the Assessing Ofﬁ'cer

Thege g
cannot be sustained-and the same is directed to be deleted. Thix groundgof -

assessee, therefore, stands allowed. -

67. Ground No.6 is as under 7

“On the facts and circumstances of the case, the learned CIT
(A) has erred both on facts and in law, in rejecting the
contention of the appellant that no surcharge is leviable as the
amendment to section 113 for levy of surcharge is effective
ouly from 1% June, 20002 and as such the case of the appellant
is ot covered by the amendment.”

68.  The assessee took ground no.8 against imposition of surcharge. It was

submitted before the 1d. CIT (A) on behalf of the assessee that the



amendment to section 113 is effective from 1.6.2002 and the search in this
case was camed on 8. I 2002 and accordingly the levy of surcharge was
unauthorized and illegal. In this regard, reliance was also placed on the
decision of Pune Bench of ITAT m the case of Aruna M. Katara vs. DCIT
82 'TTI 362. The Id. CIT (A) has éonéidered the provisions of sections
158BH and 113 of Income-tax Act and upheld the order of the Assessing

Ofﬁcer In this regard, he also made reference to the Circular No.7 dated

14.8.1995 of CBDT. The ﬁﬁdmg of the Id. CIT (A) was challenged by the

assessee before us.

69. The 1d. counsel for the assessee submitted before us that the issue has .
been decuied by Amntsar Bench of-the ITAT it the case of Manohar La] *
Rattan Lal vs. DCIT 91 TTJ (Asr) 737 wherem it Was held that prowso to

| : secuon 113 shaﬂ be apphcable m respect of search camed ouf on or after 5

1.6.2002. In view of the above dcc131on, the levy of surcharge is ‘not

Justified as search in this case had been carried out before 1.6.2002.  This

- ground is, therefore, allowed accordingly.

70. Inthe fésult, the appeal is paftly allowed as above.

(Order pronounced in the open court on the 27 lganuary, 2006) . o

o | &
- (RAJENDRA SINGH) : (PN. PARASHAR)
ACCOUNTANT MEMBER JUDICIAL MEMBER -

Dated the 37 Tanuary, 2006/TS
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